MINUTES OF THE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT.

The meeting was called to order by Chairman William G. Mason at 3:37 p.m. on March 14, 2000 in Room 522-S of the Capitol.

All members were present except: RepresentativeThimesch

Committee staff present: April Holman, Legislative Research Department Renae Jefferies, Revisor of Statutes Lynne Holt, Legislative Research Department Rose Marie Glatt, Committee Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee: Steve Kelly, Director Business Development, KDOCH

Others attending: See Attached List

Representative Beggs moved and seconded by Representative Sharp that the minutes from the March 2 and 7th meetings be approved. The motion carried.

The Chairman asked April Holman to brief the committee on <u>HB 3010</u>. This bill would amend the Kansas investment credit act of 1976. The bill would de-couple this act from the use of SIC codes, (Standard Industrial Codes) or other labor market information service coding. It would allow the Secretary of KDOCH to evaluate a business using the NAICS (North American Industry Classification System). The bill also amends current law to require businesses to notify KDOCH of their intent to invest in qualified business in order to be eligible for state training programs. At the request of the Chairman, Steve Kelly explained the SIC code, which has been the standard for over fifty years, by which businesses were placed according to activity in the industry. The NAICS system is a newer system that will replace the SIC code. He explained that the government starting a lengthy transition period and this bill is asking for permission to work with the NAICS code during that transition.

The Chairman opened the hearing on **HB 3010**.

Steve Kelly introduced David Bybee, Department of Commerce and Housing, noting that he would provide definitive information on the bill. Mr. Kelly explained the changes proposed in the bill (Attachment 1). A. The first technical change provides language that has been incorporated into the HPIP statute to help transition from the use of the current SIC system to the new NAICS system. B. The second technical change involves language which clarifies that the business is to use a 40 hour work week, when converting part-time employees to full-time equivalents. C. The third change clarifies disclosure requirements for the sensitive wage and other confidential information provided to KDOCH, in order to qualify for the program. D. The fourth change is additional language to explicitly require the business to acknowledge an awareness of the program benefits, and to submit an estimate of project capital investment before it commits to the investment. E. The fifth change is additional language that would enable credits to be earned for *exceeding* the average investment made over the most recent several years.

A question was raised regarding the current disclosure requirement for confidential information. Mr.Bybee explained that due to the open records act, there is nothing in place to prevent someone from asking for sensitive information submitted by businesses in order to qualify for the program. KDOCH proposes that they be allowed to retain that information internally without the obligation to release that information to the general public. Although this has not been a problem in the past, they would like to make this pro-active effort to prevent them any future problems. That language pertaining to this issue is on page 3, lines 4,5,6,7, 8, 27, 28 and 29 of the proposed bill

Shirley Sicillian, Department of Revenue, explained the updated fiscal note. She explained there were two scenarios. The first would result in a negative \$1.5 million if you exclude the \$50,000 on page 6, line 15, because firms with investments of less than \$50,000 would be eligible for credits. If the intent of the bill is to the higher of \$50,000 or the increment above the annual average, then the fiscal note is a positive figure of \$373,000. She said the intent of the bill was unclear and discussion followed. She said they had suggested language that would allow for a clearer definition.

Discussion followed regarding the language on page 3, line 7 may be made available to the legislative post audit.

Mr. Kelly stated that KDHR had made a couple of minor clarifying language adjustments regarding the transfer from the SIC to the NAICS. KDOCH does not have a problem with their suggested language changes. The revisor has those suggested changes. In response to the Chairman question, Mr. Kelly stated the real peanut of the bill is twofold: first the technical change to allow for the transition from SIC to NAICS and secondly this bill addresses the department's concern regarding inquiries from those that they feel want to access the program on a retroactive basis, when we have had no knowledge of their interest or investment until after the fact. This program is meant to be an incentive and awarding credits after the fact defeats the purpose. The actual language, page 6, line 4, which,

prior to making a commitment to invest in a qualified Kansas business, has filed a certificate of intent to invest in a qualified business facility in a form satisfactory to the secretary of commerce and housing, addresses that issue.

Discussion questioning the language on page 6, lines 15, 16 and 17 regarding the \$50,000 the annual average investment made over the lessor of: (1) All of the taxpayer's prior tax years; or (2) the taxpayer's five most recent tax years followed.. Mr. Kelly stated that they did not have any problem maintaining the \$50,000 minimum.

The Chairman asked what the need or situation was for the language changes on page 2, line 38 regarding the 40 hour work week. Mr. Bybee stated that it clarifies the language defining a forty hour work week over the entire measurement period as opposed to focusing on a single work week. They use the forty-hour-work week as the standard when converting part-time to full time equivalent employees. The Attorney General's office suggested that the regulations need further clarification, although this is the current practice.

Further discussion on the intent of the bill followed. Mr. Kelly stated that he had a copy of the suggestions for clarification by KDHR. These have been given to the Revisor for inclusion and changes in the bill.

The Chairman closed the hearing on **HB 3010** and opened the hearing on **HB 3011** asking Ms. Holman to brief the committee. The bill would add an additional criteria by which businesses could qualify for the Kansas investments in major projects and comprehensive training act for IMPACT. The new criteria would be the retention of existing jobs, wherein the past, there was a job expansion criteria but not the retention of the existing jobs. The bill would require that the assistance aimed at job retention maintain at least 1,000 jobs involve an investment of at least \$250 million dollars in capital investment, and be a major factor of keeping the business in Kansas, as determined by the Secretary of Commerce and Housing. The bill would also require that a report regarding the approval of projects, under the IMPACT program be provided to the Chairperson for the Senate Committee on Commerce and the House Economic Development Committee. There is no fiscal impact on this bill.

Mr. Kelly testified in favor of <u>HB 3011</u>(Attachment 2). He explained the IMPACT program and the program's significant results in its dual role of spurring job creation and enhancing training capacity. The bill would modify the existing IMPACT statute to, also, give the state the ability to respond to large job retention and retraining projects. He summarized by saying that <u>HB 3011</u> gives the state the flexibility to not only facilitate job growth and the resultant increase in state income tax revenue, but also to retain jobs and the tax revenue currently being generated by those jobs.

In response to a question about the significance of the bill to GM, Mr. Kelly responded that this bill could potentially be used for retraining for GM employees, looking at the potential loss of jobs as justification for using this approach. Discussion followed regarding other existing programs and their limitations and data on the usage of previous IMPACT projects.

The Chairman reviewed the fiscal note, stating that according to the KDOCH and KDHR this bill would have no fiscal impact. Mr. Kelly stated that there would be an impact based on the training amount spread out over a ten year period per project. He noted that he had recently talked to Steve Jack, who had talked to the Budget office and they confirmed the fiscal impact for any one project would be spread out over a period of 10 years.

Representative Kuether shared information on the problems at Goodyear. She noted that they are losing workers due to technological changes and re-training needs. She added that there will be many big businesses that will need this bill in order to meet the challenges in the future; noting it will make a difference of whether they stay in Kansas or re-locate. She raised the question of the percentage of "matching" funds from the businesses, noting that this was not a free ride for the companies.

The Chairman closed the hearing on **HB 3011**.

The next meeting is Thursday, March 16, 2000.

The Chairman adjourned the meeting at 4:25 p.m.